## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

GREGORY MILLS, )	
Appellant, )	
vs. )	CASE NO. 59,140
STATE OF FLORIDA,	,
Appellee. )	FILED
	OCT 16 1980
	SID J. WHITE CLERK SUPREME COURT
IN AND FOR	THE CIRCUIT COURT Chief Deputy Clerk
STATE	OF FLORIDA

## INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

JAMES R. WULCHAK ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER 136-1/2 South Beach Street Daytona Beach, Florida 32014 (904) 252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this brief the symbol "R" will be used to refer to the pages of the record on appeal. The symbol "A" will refer to the pages of the supplemental record on appeal filed on July 21, 1980. The symbol "B" will refer to the pages of the second supplemental record on appeal filed on September 22, 1980.

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The defendant, Gregory Mills, was charged by indictment filed on June 20, 1979, with the offenses of first degree felony murder (while in the course of a burglary) of James Wright, burglary, aggravated battery of James Wright, and possession of a firearm by a convicted felon. (R483-485) On June 26, 1979, Gregory Mills entered a plea of not guilty to the charges. (R529)

Defense counsel filed numerous pre-trial motions, including a motion to dismiss the indictment, a motion to declare the death penalty unconstitutional, and a motion to sequester jurors. (R536,543,545,548,556,558,563,592) The court reserved ruling on the motion to sequester (Bll), and denied the other motions. (B10,16-17,18) In response to other defense motions, the state filed a statement of aggravating circumstances and a list of agreements between the state and certain witnesses. (R565,590,601,604,608) A motion to suppress the testimony of these state witnesses because of their deals with the state was denied. (R174,610,612) The trial court granted Mills' motion to suppress the swab test of the defendant's hands, which test was involuntarily seized from Mills prior to his arrest and without probable (R487,614,616) cause.

Trial by jury on Counts I, II, and III commenced on August 16, 1979, before the Honorable J. William Woodson, Judge of the Circuit Court of the Eighteenth Judicial Circuit,

- 2 -

in and for Seminole County, Florida.  $(R615)^{1/}$  Following the denials of Mills' motions for a judgment of acquittal, the jury found the defendant guilty of first degree felony murder, burglary, and aggravated battery. (R616,619-621) The court adjudicated the defendant guilty of all three charges and scheduled the penalty phase of the trial for Monday, August 20, 1979. (R616)

On August 20, 1979, following the presentation of additional testimony, the jury recommended that Mills receive a sentence of life imprisonment for the murder conviction. (R622,623) A motion for new trial was denied on August 30, 1979. (R488,496;B1,7)

On April 18, 1980, following a pre-sentence investigation, the trial court overruled the jury's life recommendation and sentenced Mills to death. (R638-643,655-666) The court also sentenced Mills to ten years on the burglary conviction, and five years on the aggravated battery charge, the sentences to run concurrently. (R638,644-645)

The original notice of appeal to the Fifth District Court of Appeal was filed on August 31, 1979, prior to the defendant's sentence of death. (R489) Following the death sentence a new notice of appeal to this court was filed on April 23, 1980, and the Fifth District Court of Appeal transferred the prior appeal to this Court on May 28, 1980. (R667,940) This appeal follows.

Trial on Count IV was scheduled for September 24, 1979, and was later nolle prossed. (R496,632; B13-14)

In the early morning hours of May 25, 1979, James Wright was awakened by a noise in his house. (R3-5) Mr. Wright went into the Florida room and encountered an intruder. (R5) The intruder shot Mr. Wright in the side at close range with a shotgun. (R6) Mrs. Margaret Wright, coming to her husband's aid, observed through the window a single tall, thin black man with a light colored hat run across the yard to a bicycle under an oak tree. (R6-7,10,11-12,15,39) Mrs. Wright walked her husband to bed, called a doctor, and notified the police. (R7) Mr. Wright died from a massive hemorrhage as a result of the gunshot wound. (R22)

Police immediately conducted a "dragnet" of the area, looking for anyone on a bicycle. (R169-170) Lieutenant Russell, on his way to the scene of the burglary, stopped and detained Vincent Ashley, a tall, slender black male who was wearing a light colored hat and riding a bicycle. (R29-30,33,39-40) Ashley's clothing was sweaty. (R33)

The police also observed a bicycle parked outside the emergency room of Sanford's Memorial Hospital. (R44-45,344) Upon inquiring as to the owner of the bicycle, Mills, who had been seeking treatment for a severe toothache and headache, identified himself to police as the owner of the bicycle. (R343-344) The defendant was detained, driven to the scene of the burglary, and taken to the police station. (R45-46,344-346)

- 4 -

At the police station, the police questioned Ashley and the defendant separately and conducted a gunshot residue test on each. (R293-294,378-380) Ashley repeatedly told police that he had merely been out exercising. (R255,266-267) Ashley and Mills were released from custody at dawn. (R47,145-149,346) Upon returning the defendant to his house, the police spoke with Sylvester Davis, the defendant's houseguest, as to Mills' whereabouts that night. (R105,145-150,346-347,368-369)

On May 27, 1979, Viola Mae Stafford, Davis' girlfriend who also had been a houseguest of the defendant, was arrested for shoplifting at a convenience store. (R58,117,122-[The defendant's sister-in-law had turned in 123,139) Stafford to the police. (R139-140)] In exchange for the dropping of this charge, Stafford and Davis led the police to some hidden shotgun shells which were of the type used in the Wright homicide. (R48-50,62-63,117-118,122-127) Davis was later arrested for a burglary and a grand theft. (R118-120,601) In exchange for the dropping of these charges, he told police that the defendant had confided that he had "shot some cracker," that he had disposed of the shotgun, that he was going to have his sister pick up the rifle from his hidden location, and that he needed Davis' help in disposing of the shotgun shells. (R105-112,118-120,122,131-133,601) Davis also indicated that he had seen Mills with a shotgun in his possession on the night of the burglaryhomicide and that, the following morning, Mills had asked Davis to tell police that the defendant had gone to the

- 5 -

hospital that night. (R100-101,104-105,136) Davis denied that it had been Ashley who had had the shotgun and had asked Davis to help him. (RR137-138)

Gloria Robinson, an employee of the sewer department of Sanford, discovered a discarded shotgun in some bushes while working the morning after the incident. (R75-77) She notified the police, who arrived a short time later. (R78) Mrs. Robinson also observed a car driven by Vivian Mills (the defendant's sister) ride slowly by the scene of the uncovered shotgun. (R81-83) Vivian Mills testified (by deposition to perpetuate testimony) for the state that she had driven by the scene and was curious concerning the commotion. (R177-178,183-185) Vivian Mills testified that she was merely returning home from downtown, and denied that her brother had asked her to drive to the location to retrieve a rifle. (R177-178,181,188)

Vincent Ashley, who was redetained and requestioned concerning the offense, heard of Davis' story to the police while Ashley was in custody, and decided to change his version in exchange for complete immunity for the instant offenses and for any and all burglaries and robberies which he had committed over a span of several months. (R261-262,278-283,285-289,608-609) At trial, Ashley testified that he had accompanied Mills on bicycles to the victim's house to commit a burglary. (R242-246) According to Ashley, the defendant was carrying the shotgun. (R242-243) After the two entered the house through a window, James Wright awoke. (R247-250) Ashley testified that he saw Wright and

- 6 -

ran from the house without notifying the defendant. (R250) After he was outside, Ashley heard a shot and saw the defendant exit the house, still holding the shotgun. (R251-252) According to Ashley, he and Mills ran together to their bicycles and rode off in different directions. (R253,266) Mrs. Wright had testified, however, that she only observed one person run from the house to one bicycle. (R7,11-12)

After Ashley was initially detained, police conducted a gunshot residue test of his hands. (R293-294) The results of the test, which were negative, were admitted during the state's case-in-chief at trial over the defendant's objections. (R304-305,333)

Gregory Mills testified at trial that after work (which involved stocking metal shelves in a convenience store cooler), he went to a couple of bars alone and then returned home because of a toothache and headache. (R338-343,351-361) After trying unsuccessfully to sleep, Mills got up and rode his bicycle to a nearby hospital to obtain some medication for his tooth and head. (R343-344,362-364) He had been at the hospital for approximately twenty minutes before the police detained him. (R344,365) Mills denied any involvement in the burglary or homicide. (R348,350,371-372,374-375) He also denied shooting a gun on the night in question. (R348-349)

On rebuttal, and over defense counsel's objections,

- 7 -

the state introduced into evidence the results of a gunshot residue test conducted on Mills.<sup>2/</sup> (R376-380,383) The results of the test read slightly higher than normal (.05 and .07 micrograms of antimony on the defendant's hands, where .01 to .02 micrograms are considered normal), but much less than the .2 micrograms finding necessary to conclusively indicate that a gun had been fired. (R384,386-392)

At trial, the defendant's Assistant Public Defender attempted to cross-examine Vincent Ashley as to previous statements which Ashley had made concerning his actions on the night in question. (R269-270) These statement had been made to a public defender investigator while the public defender's office represented Ashley on robbery and probation violation charges. (R269-270) The state objected to the cross-examination on the basis of the attorney-client privilege. (R270-271) Despite Ashley's initial willingness to waive the attorney-client privilege, the state insisted that Ashley's current attorney be contacted to confer with Ashley prior to Ashley answering the questions. (R271-273) The court then recessed for the state to have Ashley's attorney consult with Ashley. (R271,273) Following this consultation, Ashley asserted the attorney-client privilege, and the defendant was precluded from delving into Ashley's prior statements made to the public defender investigator. (R273-275)

 $\frac{2}{}$  The gunshot residue test had been suppressed during the state's case-in-chief, the court ruling that it was illegally obtained without probable cause and exigent circumstances since the defendant had been detained solely because of the "dragnet" for people on bicycles. (R163-174) At the penalty phase of the trial, the state introduced testimony and a certified copy of a judgment against the defendant for aggravated assault. (The defendant had been convicted of running a police officer off of the road during a chase). (A29,49-52) The state also introduced testimony indicating that Mills was serving the probationary/parole portion of a split sentence for the aggravated assault conviction at the time of the incident. (A26-27,53-56)

At the penalty phase, Mills' grandfather and sister testified that the defendant, age 22, had been only ten years old when his father was murdered. (A66-67,72-73) Greg's mother had, as a result, been forced to go to work as a farm laborer and the defendant was raised by his older sister. (A67-68,73-4) Mills, who grew up in this poor, broken family, dropped out of school after the seventh grade. (A68-70,74-75) After Mills was convicted of the aggravated assault, he successfully obtained a G.E.D. and started taking college courses in the correctional center. (A74) Upon his release from prison, Mills was gainfully employed in a position in which he handled money, he was a good worker, he had his own house and a bank account, and he was trying to straighten out his life. (A58-60,75-78)

### ARGUMENT

## POINT I

THE DEFENDANT WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AS GUARANTEED BY THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 16 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WHERE THERE EXISTED A CONFLICT OF INTEREST SINCE THE DEFENDANT'S COUNSEL HAD REPRESENTED THE STATE'S KEY WITNESS AND HAD ACCESS TO PRIOR, IM-PEACHING STATEMENTS.

Shortly after Vincent Ashley's arrest for the instant charges and robbery and probation charges, the public defender's office was appointed and a public defender investigator spoke with Ashley concerning the Wright burglary-The same public defender's office was homicide. (R269-270) also appointed to represent Gregory Mills. (R526) Private counsel was later appointed to represent Ashley. (R270-271) At Mills' trial, Ashley was called to testify against the defendant. (R238) His testimony was extremely damaging to Mills since it was the sole direct testimony placing Mills at the scene of the crime. (R242-253) (The victim's wife only saw one man running from the house, a description of which matched Ashley. [R6-7, 10-12, 15, 29-30,33,39-40]) Ashley's testimony was contradictory to the defendant's testimony. (R348,350,371-375)

In cross-examining Vincent Ashley, the assistant public defender questioned him concerning statements made to a Mr. Scarpello (the public defender investigator) while the public defender's office represented Ashley, apparently in an attempt to impeach Ashley with prior inconsistent statements. (R269-270) The state's objection to the testimony on the basis of attorney-client privileged communications was sustained after Ashley's current attorney advised Ashley to exercise the privilege. (R271-275)

As this Court has recently stated in Foster v. State, So.2d , 1980 FLW 309 (Fla. Sup. Ct. Case No. 50,393, decided 6/19/80, reh. den. 9/26/80), the sixth amendment right to the assistance of counsel contemplates legal representation that is effective and unimpaired by the existence of conflicting interests being represented by a single attorney. Holloway v. Arkansas, 435 U.S. 475 (1978); Glasser v. United States, 315 U.S. 60 (1942); Baker v. State, 202 So.2d 563 (Fla. 1967). This conflict exists in equal measure where counsel has previously represented a person who is now testifying against a current client, where impeaching information is known to the attorney by the prior representation. In Olds v. State, 302 So.2d 787 (Fla. 4th DCA 1974), cert. denied 312 So.2d 743 (Fla. 1975), while recognizing that there is no per se conflict in having previously represented a state's witness who is now testifying against a current client, the court nevertheless stated that a conflict of interests is clearly present where potentially impeaching information had been received by the attorney during the prior representation of the now adverse witness:

Finally, on this account, we recognize on the other hand that there may well be instances where matters reach an impasse, leaving no alternative but to relieve the Public Defender in a trial in order to afford the accused a fair trial and at the same time accord a witness the attorney-client confidentiality. Where the witness had privately given the Public Defender damaging information which he would be required to elicit in the instant trial, it would obviously be a conflict which would not be countenanced. Olds v. State, supra at 792. (emphasis added)

<u>See also</u> Florida Code of Professional Responsibility, DR 5-105 (B); ABA Comm. on Professional Ethics, Informal Opinion, No. 1322 (1976).

Since Ashley, the public defender's former client, and Mills were both suspects in the instant crimes, there was the strong probability of a conflict between their interests at the time the court appointed the public defender's This conflict became more substantial office to represent them. and apparent to the assistant public defender at the time he learned that the state might use Ashley's testimony. The conflict was revealed to the court through an objection concerning Ashley's deposition, (R270-271) and was again revealed to the court when Ashley gave his damaging testimony and the problems concerning prior attorney-client statements were reopened. (R269-271) See Foster v. State, supra.

As this Court has held in Foster v. State, supra:

The state argues that reversal cannot be ordered on this ground since there was no defense objection to representation or motion for separate representation. To deny a motion for separate representation, where a risk of conflicting interests exists, is reversible error. Holloway v. Arkansas, 435 U.S. 475 (1978). Even in the absence of an objection or motion below, however, where actual conflict of interest or prejudice to the appellant is shown, the court's action in making the joint appointment and allowing the joint representation to continue is reversible error. See Belton v. State, 217 So.2d 97 (Fla. 1968). As the United States Supreme Court said in Glasser, "Upon the trial judge rests the duty of seeing that the trial is conducted with solicitude for the essential rights of the accused.... The trial court should protect the right of an accused to have the assistance of counsel." 315 U.S. at 71.

We hold that the appellant was denied his right to the effective assistance of counsel by the joint representation of the appellant and a state witness by the same courtappointed attorney. The judgment and sentences are vacated and the case is remanded for a new trial.

Similarly, Mills was denied his right to the effective assistance of counsel because of the obvious conflict of interests. A new trial is necessitated with the appointment of private counsel.

### POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN PRECLUDING IMPEACHMENT OF THE STATE'S KEY WITNESS BY A PRIOR STATEMENT IN VIOLATION OF THE DEFENDANT'S RIGHT OF CONFRONTATION AS GUARANTEED BY THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 16 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

During the defendant's cross examination of Vincent Ashley, defense counsel, in an obvious attempt to impeach Ashley, asked him if he had ever spoken with a Mr. Scarpello concerning the incident. (R269-270) Following the state's objection, Mills was precluded from delving into these prior statements. (R270-275)

The trial court's curtailment of defense inquiry into matters regarding prior impeaching statements of a witness constituted a deprivation of his absolute and fundamental right to cross-examine a witness against him, as guaranteed by the sixth amendment of the federal constitution. <u>Coco v. State</u>, 62 So.2d 892 (Fla. 1953). <u>See also §90.608(1)</u>, Fla. Stat. (1979). This is especially true here in a capital case, where this crucial witness' testimony condemned the appellant to die in the electric chair. <u>Coxwell v. State</u>, 361 So.2d 148 (Fla. 1978).

The fundamental right to confrontation includes the opportunity to cross-examine witnesses affording the jury the occasion to weigh the demeanor and veracity of the

- 14 -

witness. Davis v. Alaska, 415 U.S. 308 (1974); Barber v. Page, 390 U.S. 719 (1968); Pointer v. Texas, 380 U.S. 400 (1965); Coco v. State, supra; Baker v. State, 150 So.2d 729 (Fla. 3d DCA 1963).

In <u>Davis v. Alaska</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Supreme Court of the United States held that the right to cross-examination includes as its essential ingredient the right to impeach one's accusers by showing bias, impartiality, and by discrediting the witness:

> Cross-examination is the principal means by which the believability of a witness and the truth of his testimony are tested. Subject always to broad discretion of a trial judge to preclude repetitive and unduly harassing interrogation, the cross-examiner is not only permitted to delve into the witness' story to test the witness' perceptions and memory, but the cross-examiner had traditionally been allowed to impeach, i.e., discredit, the witness. 415 U.S. at 316. (emphasis added)

In the instant case, the witness sought to be impeached on cross-examination was Vincent Ashley, the prosecution's key witness. It was Ashley, and Ashley alone, who testified that Mills had committed the acts for which he was charged. Clearly, the opportunity to cross-examine and impeach this witness was <u>essential</u> to the defense. His credibility was the "linch-pin of the Government's case." <u>Levin v. Katzenbach</u>, 363 F.2d 287, 292 (D.C. Cir. 1966). The state's case would "stand or fall on the jury's belief of disbelief" of his testimony. Naupe v. Illinois, 360 U.S. 264, 269 (1959). Any infringement upon the opportunity to effectively cross-examine this key prosecution witness would constitute "error of the first magnitude." <u>See Davis v. Alaska</u>, 415 U.S. at 318. Questioning concerning the prior statements to the investigator was a proper and vital line of inquiry which was highly relevant to Ashley's credibility and veracity, and which the defendant should have been allowed to reveal to the jury:

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