FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

DEC 12 1980

GREGORY MILLS,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CLOS J. WHITE COURT

CASE NO. 59,140

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

BARBARA ANN BUTLER ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

125 No. Ridgewood Ave. Fourth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32014 (904) 252-2005

COUNSEL FOR APPELEE

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

Appellant would have this Court believe, and indeed has alleged, that he was denied effective assistance of counsel due to an existing conflict of interest between representation for Vincent Ashley and himself. Appellant relies upon the recent case of Foster v. State, 387 So.2d 344 (Fla. 1980) for the proposition that dual representation is improper. In Foster, a private attorney was appointed to represent the husband and the wife in murder proceedings. At the husband's trial, the wife appeared and was questioned by her husband's attorney, who was also her own attorney. On cross-examination the attorney brought out that the wife had been charged in the incident, that charges were currently pending against her, and that he was in fact her attorney. The court reversed the conviction and ordered a new trial holding that the trial court committed error in initially making a joint appointment under the circumstances and further error was created when the trial court allowed the joint representation to continue. The court found conflict apparent at the time of the appointment and determined that the conflict became more substantial as the case continued.

The facts in the instant case are easily distinguishable. Here the public defender service was appointed to represent two indigent clients in two unrelated matters. Unlike Foster, there was no initial conflict apparent. Furthermore, joint representation was not allowed to continue in the instant

cause. Upon its own motion, the public defender service was allowed to withdraw and private counsel appointed to represent Vincent Ashley. The representation did not continue until the time of trial as it did in Foster.

Appellant also relies on the case of <u>Olds v. State</u>, 302 So.2d 787 (Fla. 4th DCA 1974). While the factual situation in <u>Olds</u> is more analogous, it does not involve an attorney-client privilege. In <u>Olds</u>, the public defender service represented the defendant in a homicide trial and had formerly represented the state's star witness. Through this representation, the public defender was aware of certain statements made by the former client which he sought to use for impeachment purposes. The statements in <u>Olds</u> however were not privilege communication between an investigator and a client. They were statements made by the witness in the presence of third party and were matters of public record. No valid attorney-client privilege existed concerning the statements.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal in Olds, supra, found no per se conflict in situations where defense counsel had previously represented a client who is called as a state witness and testifies against a current client. However the court stated that under certain circumstances potentially impeaching information received by an attorney during a prior representation could create a conflict in which the continued representation of a current client would be impermissible. Id. at 792.

Appellant advocates this logic in the instant cause.

We fail to see the merit in this argument. It would require the

public defender to withdraw from representation of Appellant. Even then, private counsel could not inquire as to the alleged inconsistent statement. Those communications are protected by an attorney-client privilege. Vincent Ashley chose to exercise that privilege. Hence questions were impermissible on the issue whomsoever represented Appellant.

We submit that the record on appeal is dispositive of this issue:

- Q. You were out exercising?
- A. Yeah.
- Q. Went out to Midway and you decided to ride around some more?
- A. Yes.
- Q. Remember talking to Mr. Scarpello about this?
- MR. MARBLESTONE: I'm going to object, Your Honor. May we approach the bench?
- (Whereupon, a discussion was had out of the hearing of the Court Reporter.)
- THE COURT: Let the Jury be excused just for a minute, please.

In fact, I think I'm going to let the Jury be excused for lunch. So, by the time we come back. . .so, ya'll be excused. Do not discuss the case among yourselves or with anyone and be back about one o'clock.

(Whereupon, the Jury leaves the Courtroom.)

THE COURT: All right.

MR. MARBLESTONE: Your Honor, my objection is an objection that was raised before on the deposition of Mr. Ashley. He's talking about certain verbal and written statements that may or may not have been made to Mr. Scarpello who is an investigator with the Office of the Public Defender.

At that time, Mr. Ashley was represented by the Public Defender on a robbery charge and a violation of probation charge stemming out of that robbery, and it's my contention I think the Court has previously ruled that this would be an invasion of the attorney-client privilege which applies to all members of the law firm whether it's a Public Defender firm or private concern, and its investigator and/or personnel.

Subsequent to the Court ruling in that deposition, Mr. Jim Weart, representing Mr. Ashley, has conferred with him and has indicated to me that upon his investigation, he would be recommending that his client not breach that attorneyclient privilege and he invokes that that should be done out of the presence of the Jury as the Court has done.

If we need to get Mr. Weart over here, we can do that.

- THE COURT: Well, of course, it's a right that's not privileged to Mr. Weart, but privileged to the witness and if the witness wants to testify as to what he told the investigator, he can. Of course, it's a privilege.
- MR. MARBLESTONE: Could the Court inquire of the witness what he wants to do based upon his consultation with his lawyer, whether he wants to say what he told Mr. Scarpello, or whether he wants to invoke the attorney-client privilege?
- MR. GREEN: Your Honor, I think that the Jury ought to be able to hear. If he doesn't want to say what he said to Mr. Scarpello, let him invoke the privilege himself.
- MR. MARBLESTONE: It's not probative of anything because then Scarpello can't testify.

THE COURT: No, that would be --

MR. MARBLESTONE: Razing a strawman.

THE COURT: That would be an improper way.

Do you want to tell the Jury. . .answer the question as to what you told the investigator for your attorney? I mean, it's up to you. If you want . . .you have a right to testify or not testify as to what you told your attorney.

MR. MARBLESTONE: Your Honor, I would ask, you know, before he makes any decision he be allowed to consult with his attorney.

THE COURT: Probably should. I don't know.

MR. MARBLESTONE: Possibly during the recess he could consult with his attorney.

THE COURT: May have to do that because he might be testifying to something that might hold him responsible for some other crime. I don't know what he told Mr. Scarpello.

MR. GREENE: Just concerning this specific case. I'm not talking about everything under the sun.

THE WITNESS: He talking about what I told Scarpello about this murder charge? Yes, I don't mind answering that.

THE COURT: All right, fine.

MR. MARBLESTONE: Judge, I'd still ask that he have the opportunity to consult with Mr. Weart before he goes on record and makes a final decision.

THE COURT: Well, he can talk to Mr. Weart.

MR. MARBLESTONE: I mean, as long as we're taking a lunch recess, anyway.

THE COURT: Fine. Mr. Weart -- where is he at? Is he here? He was here earlier.

- MR. MARBLESTONE: He's in and around the Courthouse, somewhere.
- THE COURT: Because Mr. Weart. . .was he acting as private or public defender?
- MR. MARBLESTONE: He's specially appointed public defender.
- THE COURT: All right. Well, we can see during the lunch hour or before one o'clock if we can or at one o'clock.
 - All right. Court will be in recess until one o'clock.
- (Whereupon, a luncheon recess was had. After which, the proceedings resumed as follows:)
- THE COURT: Mr. Weart, did you converse with your former client?
- MR. WEART: Yes, Your Honor, I did. As a matter of fact, I'm still actively representing him.
- THE COURT: You're still --
- MR. WEART: Yes, sir. I'm still representing him because there are some other outstanding charges.

Your Honor, would you like for me to put on the record what --

- THE COURT: Yes, if you would, please.
- MR. WEART: All right.
- THE COURT: Mr. Weart informs me that he's conversed with his client, the present witness testifying. Go ahead.
- MR. WEART: Your Honor, at this time, I would announce to the Court that it is Mr. Ashley's decision that he invoke the privilege in that the matters that he discussed with Mr. Scarpello were discussed under the attorney-client privilege umbrella at the time, and that Mr. Scarpello was an investigator of the Public Defender's Office and these things were said in strict confidence.

THE COURT: All right. You were representing him at that time or who was?

MR. WEART: No. The Public Defender's Office was representing him.

THE COURT: At that time?

MR. WEART: Yes, sir, and then they withdrew subsequent to that time and I was appointed.

(Whereupon, the witness was returned to the witness stand.)

THE COURT: Have you spoken with your attorney during the lunch hour, Mr. Weart?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Now, the question is, do you desire at this time to answer any questions concerning any statements that you made to Mr. Scarpello at the time that the Public Defender was representing you and he was an investigator for the Public Defender?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: All right. So, we won't go into that area of any statements made to Mr. Scarpello for the Public Defender's Office.

(R-269-275).

In conclusion Appellee submits that although the Public Defender's Office for a short time represented both Vincent Ashley and Appellant, this representation was terminated upon realization that a potential conflict of interest did exist. The public defender service acted in an expeditious manner in withdrawing from representation of Vincent Ashley. Therefore, this case does not fall into the category of impermissible dual

representation. Appellant was not deprived of effective assistance of counsel based on the former representation of Vincent Ashley by the Public Defender's Office. Moreover, questions concerning Ashely's communications with prior counsel were impermissible regardless of Appellant's representation.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN PRECLUDING IMPEACHMENT OF THE STATE'S KEY WITNESS BY AN ALLEGED PRIOR STATEMENT PROTECTED BY AN ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE.

ARGUMENT

Florida law recognizes that certain catagories of relevant evidence may not be used at trial because to allow otherwise would interfere with interest and relationships of special social importance. Among those recognized privileges is the privilege that protects the confidentiality of communications between attorneys and their clients. The privilege belongs to the client and covers confidential conversations held in the course of a professional relationship.

In the instant case Vincent Ashley chose to exercise his attorney-client privilege at trial when questioned on an alleged prior inconsistent statement made to an investigator employed by his former attorney, the Office of the Public Defender. Appellant sought to impeach the credibility of this witness through the use of the prior inconsistent statement. On appeal Appellant claims the trial court erred in precluding this impeachment on the basis of an attorney-client privilege. He argues that his fundamental right to confront, cross-examine and impeach witnesses denied by the trial court. Appellee respectfully disagrees.

While the right to cross examine witnesses is a fundamental right, it cannot be construed as suggesting that the scope of cross-examination is totally without bounds. <u>Coxwell v. State</u>, 361 So.2d 148, 152 (Fla. 4th DCA 1978). The attorney-client privilege is firmly established in the law of this state.

<u>Keir v. State</u>, 11 So.2d 886 (Fla. 1943).

Admittedly the privilege is not absolute. <u>Sepler v.</u>

<u>State</u>, 191 So.2d 588 (Fla. 3d DCA 1966). However, when deciding whether the attorney-client privilege is to be respected or outweighed by public interest in the administration of justice, the trial court must balance the competing interests and the circumstances involved. On one hand is the attorney and client and their right to the protection of the privilege. On the other is the public and the state and corresponding interest in the proper administration of law and justice.

Appellant argues that the instant case is a situation in which the interest of justice must prevail over the sanctity of the attorney-client privilege. Appellant makes an emotional argument, but there is no basis for this assertion. The record on appeal is completely silent as what Ashley told Investigator Scarpello. Appellant alleges these statements are inconsistent with statements made by Ashley to police officers on the early morning of May 25, 1979. However, this Court is without sufficient information, as was the trial court, to evaluate Appellant's assertion.

Appellant offered no proffer at trial as to the

silent as what Ashley told Investigator Scarpello. Appellant alleges these statements are inconsistent with statements made by Ashley to police officers on the early morning of May 25, 1979. However, this Court is without sufficient information, as was the trial court, to evaluate Appellant's assertion.

Appellant offered no proffer at trial as to the content of the privileged communications. Likewise, Appellant did not object when Ashley exercised the privilege thereby refusing to answer the questions propounded. Appellant entered no objection before the trial court and no argument was made as to whether the competing societal interest in the proper administration of justice were sufficient to override the attorney-client privilege. The burden is clearly on the parties seeking disclosure to produce evidence that the communication is either not privileged, or in the alternative, the interest of the proper administration of law and justice exceeds that of the privileged communication. Leithauser v. Harrison, 168 So.2d 95 (Fla. 2d DCA 1964).

We submit that Appellant has not met his burden under the Florida Contemporaneous Objection Rule and the point of error has not been preserved for appellate review. <u>United States v. Jones</u>, 554 F.2d 251 (5th DCA 1977), <u>Castor v. State</u>, 365 So.2d 701 (Fla. 1978), <u>Phillips v. State</u>, 351 So.2d 738 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977).

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING TESTIMONY IN EVIDENCE OF GUNSHOT RESIDUE TESTS. (RESTATED)

ARGUMENT

Appellant has designated three (3) separate arguments under this issue. Each argument is without merit. However Appellee will address each separately.

A. The Gunshot Residue Tests Were Sufficiently Reliable And Hence The Results Were Admissible.

Evidence concerning the gunshot residue analysis, more specifically atomic absorption spectrometry, was admitted through the testimony of Robert Kopec. Mr Kopec is a microanalyst and forensic scientist with the Sanford Regional Crime Laboratory. (R-295-296) His credentials, to wit: formal educational background, training, experience, lecturing on a national basis, teaching, and publication of approximately fifteen (15) in scientific journals concerning forensic analysis, are above reproach. Mr. Kopec stated that he testified approximately five hundred (500) times as an expert witness in gunshot residue analysis in state, local, federal, district and circuit courts in forty seven (47) of the United States. (R-296-298)

Mr. Kopec testified that over a five (5) year period he had performed in excess of a hundred thousand (100,000) analyses. (R-297-298) A majority of these were made by atomic absorption spectrometry. (R-299-302) Mr. Kopec was accepted

in the instant case as an expert in the field of forensic science, specifically gunshot residue analysis, without objection by Appellant. (R-298-299). Mr. Kopec's testimony provided a learned and informative explanation of atomic absorption spectrometry. (R-299-303).

Appellant interposed an objection to testimony concerning the quantitative results of swabs submitted to Mr. Kopec for analysis. The proffered ground was that no predicate had been offered that tests performed were admissible in court. (R-304). This vague objection was overruled by the trial court. (Id.) The objection at trial was insufficient under Florida's Contemporaneous Objection Rule and failed to alert the trial court to the challenge that Appellant now raises on appeal. Castor v. State, supra; Phillips v. State, supra; United States v. Jones, supra. The question of reliability and exceptance within the scientific community was not properly raised by Appellant at trial and is therefore not properly preserved as an issue on appeal. We submit the issue is not properly before this Court.

In Coppolino v. State, 223 So.2d 68 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968), the Court states:

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